MINUTES

MONTANA SENATE 55th LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION

COMMITTEE ON LABOR & EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS

Call to Order: By CHAIRMAN TOM KEATING, on February 20, 1997, at 3:24 P.M., in Room 415.

ROLL CALL

Members Present:

Sen. Thomas F. Keating, Chairman (R)

Sen. James H. "Jim" Burnett, Vice Chairman (R)

Sen. Sue Bartlett (D)

Sen. Steve Benedict (R)

Sen. C.A. Casey Emerson (R)

Sen. Dale Mahlum (R)

Sen. Debbie Bowman Shea (D)

Sen. Fred Thomas (R)

Sen. Bill Wilson (D)

Members Excused: None

Members Absent: None

Staff Present: Eddye McClure, Legislative Services Division

Gilda Clancy, Committee Secretary

Please Note: These are summary minutes. Testimony and

discussion are paraphrased and condensed.

Committee Business Summary:

Hearing(s) & Date(s) Posted: SB 375, SB 364; 2/17/97

Executive Action: SB 353 TABLE

SB 325 DO PASS

SB 290 DO PASS AS AMENDED

SB 349 DO PASS AS AMENDED

SB 350 DO PASS

SB 375 DO PASS AS AMENDED

SB 364 TABLE

HEARING ON SB 375

Sponsor: SEN. FRED THOMAS, SD 31, Stevensville

Proponents: Jacqueline Lenmark, American Insurance Association

Mark Barry, State Fund

George Wood, Montana Self-Insurers' Association Oliver Goe, Montana Municipal Insurance Authority and Montana Schools Group Risk Retention Program Ray Barnicoat, Montana Association of Counties Opponents: None.

Opening Statement by Sponsor: SEN. FRED THOMAS, SD 31, Stevensville stated that the Workers' Compensation Subsequent Injury Fund is a special fund created by statute in 1973.

The purpose of the Subsequent Injury Fund was to act as an incentive to employers who hire those workers who have sustained a previous injury. This injury could be, for example, loss of a hand. That resulting impairment is obviously an obstacle to obtaining future employment. When a worker is medically certified with a permanent impairment which is a substantial obstacle to obtained employment or re-employment, the worker may obtain certification from the Department of Labor that he or she is vocationally handicapped.

When an employer hires a certified handicapped person, the employer then receives protection under the Workers' Compensation Act. If the vocationally handicapped person has become an employee, and is injured on the new job, he or she is subject to a maximum period of 104 weeks of benefits to be charged against the current employer.

Further benefits are paid reimbursed to the employer's insurer or whatever plan is involved from the Subsequent Injury Funds. Funding of this fund has been by assessment on all Workers' Compensation insurers.

Currently, the funding method is an assessment on each insurer not to exceed 5% of an insurer's total compensation paid in Montana's preceding fiscal year. Funds are held by the Board of Investment, the current fund is fully reserved for all liabilities and potential liabilities are reported to the fund at this time.

Across the country, the Subsequent Injury Funds are being repealed and because of this, scrutiny has been brought to ours in Montana. The consensus of the insurers that operate in Montana and deal with the Subsequent Injury Fund is to address the funding mechanism and make it equitable and correct as best as possible. This legislation changes the funding and payment mechanism currently in statute from the fully reserved fund to a cash flow assessment, with a payment of benefits to the subsequent injured workers.

The reason for the funding change is upon review, it was discovered that the three plans are funding this Subsequent Injury Fund in a very disproportionate percentage to their ability to accept reimbursement from the Fund. Plan 3, the State Fund, has contributed a consistently higher percentage of funding to the Fund, yet has been the least able to draw from the Fund and get workers certified and back to work in the scenario given.

<u>Proponents' Testimony</u>: Jacqueline Lenmark, American Insurance Association said, to reiterate, the Subsequent Injury Fund was created in 1973 as an incentive for employers to hire injured workers. This law is not a benefit to insurers, it is a benefit to employers and employees but the funding mechanism has become a problem.

This bill amends the law to preserve the benefit for the employee which is an incentive to hire a handicapped worker. It also amends the law and still preserves the benefit for the employer, which is, if that handicapped person is injured after employment, the employer's experience modification is protected.

The only change is to the funding mechanism, is going from a fully reserved fund to a cash flow method. The insurers are responsible for the benefit payment after that employee is injured. The insurers will still be responsible and will be reimbursed from this Fund to protect that experience modification facet of the law.

Ms. Lenmark stated the reason they looked at this issue is that there is a trend right now around the United States to repeal the Subsequent Injury Fund. That trend was prompted by the enactment of the Americans with Disabilities Act and states are beginning to believe that these funds are no longer necessary. They felt that it was important to continue to offer an incentive rather than a hammer for employers to hire handicapped workers, so they do not recommend repealing the fund, but rather preserving it and changing this particular funding mechanism. Nine states have already repealed this kind of fund and it's under consideration in a number of other states.

Mark Barry stated that State Fund supports SB 375. He referred to (EXHIBIT 1).

Mr. Barry said the only thing this bill does is address the funding mechanism of the Subsequent Injury Fund. The current funding mechanism, on the first page shows there is a percentage applied toward the compensation payments paid in the State of Montana by plans 1, 2, and 3. In this current fiscal year, the actuary hired by the Department of Labor had determined that .7% is the factor to use against compensation payments. As you can see, for fiscal '97 the funding is \$602,000. The State Fund is paying most of it because the State Fund pays most of the benefits in the state.

The next page shows, currently the risk sharing in the way the Subsequent Injury Fund is funded, is a shared risk between plans 1, 2 and 3. The proposed law will allow each plan to fund its own access of the Subsequent Injury Fund. There won't be a subsidization from plan 3 to plan 1.

The next page shows you what the impact has been, primarily on the State Fund. The color red is the assessments which have been

paid since fiscal year '92 to fiscal year '96 by plans within the fund. The green color shows the benefits paid out by plan. As you can see, we're in favor of this bill because plan 3, the State Fund, has been funding the lion's share of the Subsequent Injury Fund. This showings that we are moving away from this type of subsidization to a different type of funding mechanism. The next sheet, titled "Proposed Assessment Method for Funding the Subsequent Injury Fund", is showing that if in a fiscal year, or a calendar year as the way the bill is written, if plan 1 pays out \$10,000, plan 2 pays out \$30,000, and plan 3 pays out \$60,000. That's the amount that will have to be collected by those plans in the next fiscal year to fund the Subsequent Injury Fund, i.e. a cash flow basis. This is assuming the cash payment and the fund would be \$100,000, which is approximately how much has been paid out in the past; however, that depends on whatever the payment is.

Mr. Barry further stated there is currently a balance in the Fund over and above what's needed in reserve for the claims that are currently being paid out of the Subsequent Injury Fund. What this bill is doing is crediting back to each plan a portion of this excess. It's being credited back to the amount in the Department of Labor administrative assessment, 39-71-201 that has been addressed in SB 290. The disbursement is based on a percentage paid into the fund in the past five years. If we assume the excess balance is \$3 million, then under our estimates, \$400,000 would go to Plan 1 administrative assessment as a credit, \$574,000 would go to Plan 2 as a credit to their Department of Labor administrative assessment, and \$2,000,000 to the State Fund.

He referred to the display that shows the State Fund has funded a good portion of the Subsequent Injury Fund Assessment. The remaining pages are information of how the certification process and payment process works within the Fund.

Mr. Barry stated that the State Fund supports this bill and the amendments to the bill.

George Wood, Montana Self-Insurers Association, said they support this bill as amended, as a realistic change in the method of funding the Subsequent Injury Fund. He said they support but all three plans would recommend the committee report this bill DO PASS.

Oliver Goe, Montana Municipal Insurance Authority & Montana and School Group Risk Retention Program, said he represents plan 1 insurers of cities, towns and school districts throughout the state. They urge a DO PASS on the bill.

Ray Barnicoat, Risk Manager for Montana Association of Counties, said they are Plan 1 insurer for Workers' Comp, insuring over 5,000 employees around the state. They also stand in support of the bill as amended and recommend a DO PASS.

Opponents' Testimony: None.

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 3:43 p.m.}

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: CHAIRMAN TOM KEATING stated that in the fiscal note it shows the assets are \$5 million and assets distribution to \$3.5 million. Is that asset the reserve and are you drawing down the reserve? Does it jeopardize your actuarials?

Mark Barry answered the \$5 million dollars are assets, not reserves, and are estimated assets at the end if this fiscal year. The \$1.4 million are reserves on known cases, based on the number from the Department of Labor's actuarial report they had done as of fiscal year '96. The \$85,000 is an estimated one year's payments and the \$49,000 is administration of the Fund. To come up with the \$3.5 million, you might ask the Department if they have any other numbers because these numbers came from the State Fund.

CHAIRMAN KEATING stated that it says the estimated reserve for known claims, the claims are the debit and are the assets in cash or furniture? What are the assets?

Mark Barry responded the assets are invested assets, and again you might want to discuss that with the Department.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said they are drawing down the assets, and apparently everybody is satisfied with that. \$3.5 million in reserve or in assets is sufficient and this doesn't change your actuarials.

Mark Barry said it should not. Again, the Department of Labor is the one that manages the Fund. You might want to address that with the Department.

Keith Messmer stated he is a program specialist in the Employment Relations Division. The one thing missing from the fiscal note on the reserves are the reserves we maintain for incurred but not reported claims. Those are claims that the actuary says are out there but they have not yet been reported, and are at approximately \$1.2 million at this time.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said so we're not in danger of an unfunded liability or anything like that.

Keith Messmer answered it depends how you define unfunded liability. We would no longer be looking at reserves on those claims but rather we would be assessing based on the amount paid in the previous calendar years.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said then you're keeping it actuarially sound by assessing after the fact.

Keith Messmer responded that is correct.

Closing by Sponsor: SENATOR THOMAS stated he didn't want to confuse the fiscal note, but the \$85,000 in one year's estimated payments is actually potentially some IBNR which have occurred prior to 7/1/97 but reported on or after that date. I think you have a bill and the amendments have been drafted shortly and that's why there's not complete understanding. However, there is consensus on them.

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 3:47 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

HEARING ON SB 364

Sponsor: SEN. SUE BARTLETT, SD 27, Helena

Proponents: Kate Choleva, Montana Women's Lobby

Terry Kendrick, Private Citizen

Janet Brooke, Montana Child Care Network

Raguel Castellanos, Working for Equality & Economic

Liberation (WEEL)

Sharon Hoff, Montana Catholic Conference

Suzanne A. Grubaugh, Salvation Army

Tina M. Allison, WEEL/FAIM AFDC Recipient

Melissa Case, Hotel/Motel Union

Russell LaVogne, People's Law Center

Tara Mele, Public Interest Research Group

Derrick Birnie, Montana Peoples Action

Don Judge, Montana AFL/CIO Dean Randash, NAPA Auto Parts

Sheila Hogan, Montana Displaced Homemakers Network

Opponents: Peter Blouke, Department of Commerce

Opening Statement by Sponsor: SEN. SUE BARTLETT, SD 27, Helena, introduced SB 364, The Livable Wage for Families Act. She said there has been much attention given to Welfare Reform, changing our approach to emphasize work in our public assistance program. This bill is an effort to focus attention on the other size of that equation, specifically, on jobs that pay a liveable wage.

SB 364 would direct the resources available through state government for economic development efforts and the expansion, attention and location of businesses in Montana, and would require those resources to carry with them the obligation for an employer to pay employees at or above a livable wage.

Referring to page 2, starting on line 7, livable wage is defined as 150% of the federal poverty level for a family of two. This year that would amount to an hourly wage of \$7.47/hour, which makes the annual income for a full time employee, working year around, \$15,538.

SEN. BARTLETT further stated SB 364 is designed to apply only to public financial assistance, not to the technical assistance that businesses may receive, or advisory assistance of those kinds of assistance that are provided in a variety of places in state government, but to types of assistance that would affect a balance sheet. These include grants, loans, tax incentives or abatements, bond financing and reduced interest rates. Another important factor in terms of what is affected is that any business receiving \$25,000 or less in public financial assistance from the state would not be affected by this bill. The assistance would have to total more than \$25,000.

She said she has made a concerted effort in shaping this bill to use systems already in place in state government. Having heard and having really listened to businesses over the last few years, SEN. BARTLETT said she realizes the extent to which they're tired of having a variety of people traipse through their businesses to check on this, that or the other thing. Consequently, she worked to place the mechanisms for this bill in the existing systems of state government. The livable wage amount would be posted on the state bulletin board, to be available to anyone who would be interested. Employees who might believe the livable wage requirement in a particular business had been violated would have the right to file a wage claim with the Department of Labor and Industry, but it would go into the wage claim process used for all other wage claims in the currently existing system of state government.

Similarly, the Department of Labor & Industry would be the Department responsible for monitoring compliance with this law, and to the largest extent possible would do that through existing systems they already have in place, so we would not be adding layers of nuisance factors for businesses.

There are penalties if a business were to accept public financial assistance of more than \$25,000 and then fail to pay the liveable wage, i.e. public financial assistance would be terminated immediately. The business would be required to pay back the assistance received previously, with interest, and would be ineligible to receive public financial assistance for 5 years.

This bill is designed to address the economic development efforts of the state and to direct those efforts toward industries and employers which are the types of industries and employers we want to encourage in the State of Montana, those that would pay a livable wage.

She referred to one technical amendment (EXHIBIT 16). She said she had put a phrase in the wrong spot in the bill the amendment corrects this.

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 3:53 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Proponents' Testimony: Kate Choleva, Montana Women's Lobby, gave
her testimony. (EXHIBIT 2)

Terry Kendrick said he worked for the Western Region Economic Development in Missoula, a team of people from the Job Service, Health & Human Services, the College of Technology and other community agencies working to develop strategies that assist businesses in their efforts to create better quality jobs.

In western Montana many of the jobs being created are in the low paying end of the service sector, and many of those available jobs are part time with no benefits.

He said according to data collected by Larry Swanson of the University of Montana, the 5 value region in western Montana ranks 19th out of 20 peer regions for worker earnings. Information distributed by Montana's Department of Labor in "The Profile of the Montana Worker", which comes out annually, shows two years ago Montana ranked 40th in the nation in per capita income. This past year Montana ranked 44th. This is not a trend that Montana families can afford.

He supports efforts to direct Montana's economic development fund in ways that benefit families and communities. It doesn't make sound economic sense to loan or grant money to a business whose employees who come back to the government for money in forms of state funded child care or food stamps or Medicare. If one of the state's goals is to get people off public assistance, hopefully the state will then too take a role in providing incentives to employers to create jobs that pay a living wage.

SB 364 provides an opportunity for Montana to direct limited economic development resources in a way that will encourage the growth of businesses that support families, revitalize the economy, and decrease dependence on public assistance.

Janet Brooke, Montana Child Care Network, said they work with parents looking for child care, and with a lot of parents who are low income and receive child care support while they work towards self-sufficiency.

They support this bill. Child care is a big expense for parents. Earning a living wage will help parents pay for the cost of their child care, and this is important when these families work toward self sufficiency and can maintain their families and their households on their own living wage.

Raquel Castellanos, WEEL, handed out (EXHIBIT 3), which is her written testimony. See (EXHIBIT 4) Newsletter for WEEL.

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:07 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Sharon Hoff, Montana Catholic Conference, gave her testimony. (EXHIBIT 5)

Suzanne Grubaugh, Social Work Intern with Salvation Army, handed out (EXHIBIT 6), written testimony.

Tina M. Allison, WEEL, FAIM - AFDC Recipient, see (EXHIBIT 7) written testimony.

Melissa Case, Hotel/Motel Union, stated her union has worked on a national level on this particular issue.

She handed out the Baltimore study (EXHIBIT 8), which relates to the Baltimore living wage ordinance that was passed in December, 1994. Other localities have already passed living wage ordinances, which is a trend across the nation.

She thinks it's an important time to shift the debate from a minimum wage to a living wage and that what we want to do is start standardizing that to a living wage, so we're making sure citizens of this state can make a living wage.

Ms. Case also thinks some of the questions that are going to come up are regarding contracts the cities or states would have with entities and costs associated with those things. In Baltimore the real cost of city contracts actually decreased by 2.4% since the ordinance went into effect. There was an argument made that the cost of actually getting contracts would increase because the cost of labor would increase, but that is not so.

Russell LaVigne, People's Law Center, appearing on behalf of Montana Low-Income Coalition and Montana Welfare Action Coalition. See (EXHIBIT 9), written testimony. Also see (EXHIBIT 10).

Tara Mele, Montana Public Interest Research Group, said they would like to go on record in support of this bill. They have worked against corporate welfare, at least asking corporations to take care of their responsibilities.

Derrick Birnie, Montana Peoples' Action, said with welfare reform coming down the pike and jobs really becoming an issue for people, we've started to do a lot of research into how to do economic development and address the needs for people.

They've sent staff members to meetings with the Senate of Community Change in Washington, DC, with the Northwest Federation of Community Organizations in Seattle and with the Applied Research Center in Santa Monica. A short list of economic development policies that would address the needs for localities to provide the jobs for people. The livable wage is one of the top subjects at all three meetings. They want to go on record supporting this and urged the committee to consider the bill positively.

Don Judge, Montana AFL/CIO, said they encourage the committee to give this bill their greatest consideration to be on the right

side of the bishops and the right side of God on this issue, that they not let the crunch of time impede reasonable understanding of this legislation.

They also encourage the amendment as been proposed by the sponsor, to pass it across to the House, and then if there are concerns we'll deal with it over there.

Dean Randash, NAPA Auto Parts, Helena, said he rises in support of a living wage.

He has supported a living wages for 25 years and has supplied his employees with everything he could for that living wage. He said he has no problem with the government wanting to help families off welfare, to improve their standard of living, and to do that through incentives.

He also doesn't have a problem with government targeting various classes of employees to help them bridge the gap from the low, probably welfare, levels of income to higher levels of income so it's not an immediate step. He doesn't have a problem with government working with incentives to advance commerce, but through small business or business.

Mr. Randash requested with regard to this bill, is amendments that don't put those people who are getting government money in competition in the wage force against him. He paid his employees an average wage of \$20,000 last year, which equates to probably \$8 or \$9 an hour. Here we're putting people immediately starting out at \$7.50 - \$7.40 an hour, subsidized by the government. He asked why he should work 25 years of my life helping employees and myself, only to be undercut by government.

Secondly, he thinks it's unfair to discriminate against single men or women or non-families over families. He said his dad's old school of thinking was when he went to work, he was single and didn't need to earn as much money. So he didn't get as much money because he didn't have a family and the family people got more. Then the evolution was the family situation didn't make any difference. Why should certain people be discriminated against for this?

The third thing is, it drives up the cost of taxes, the cost of government. Mr. Randash stated, "My people, myself, my productivity has to pay more in taxes to support this very thing. Let's be honest, if we're going to subsidize these people, let's subsidize them. If you go to work for \$5.00 an hour, fine if you want to pay another \$2.50 per hour, but let's do it above the table and not below the table".

The fourth thing is a guaranteed wage does not promote productivity, does not promote efficiency, it takes competition in the market place for labor and wages in order to promote

competency and caring and good work, on the part of himself as well as other employees.

He urged a DO PASS on this bill, but strongly recommended an amendment so it does not compete with ability to hire employees.

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:28 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Sheila Hogan, Montana Displaced Homemaker Network, said she would like to speak in support of this legislation. The Montana Displaced Homemaker Network has 12 centers that provide services throughout the state. A displaced homemaker is someone who is not necessarily on public assistance rolls but are at risk of falling on those rolls. They're trying to hang onto their houses or their property because of divorce or death, i.e. people who want to work.

Ms. Hogan said she is sure that we'd all agree family selfsufficiency is a directive from society that we've all heard over the past couple of years. They feel this bill would allow employers, who receive any type of public subsidies, to contribute to this initiative, i.e. establish self-sufficiency.

She said they really want the people we see to be selfsufficient, and minimum wage does not allow self-sufficiency. They may not be on public assistance, but oftentimes they qualify for hot lunch, LIAP and for a variety of other programs. Those folks are really not self-sufficient.

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:30 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Opponents' Testimony: Peter Blouke, Dept. of Commerce, said he reluctantly rises in opposition to SB 364 he supports the concept SEN. BARTLETT is trying to put forward.

He said he is very familiar with the relationship between welfare reform and the availability of jobs and am sensitive to that issue. Within the Department of Commerce we are very actively and aggressively pursuing job development through a number of programs operated within the Department and they would be very directly affected by this bill.

Just listing through some of them, the micro-business finance program we use to assist new companies to start up. Most of these are small companies in a very competitive environment, and if they receive funding through this bill and are required to have a higher wager than their neighboring competitor, it's unlikely they would survive. In regard to the Community Development Block Grant Program for economic development, we put out an awful lot of money through that program to again assist new start up, new businesses, new jobs for people in Montana. The Job Investment Loan Program is another program we operate that is geared for starting up jobs.

Two areas Mr. Blouke think are really significant: (1) The Board of Investments which provides loans to businesses in Montana. He said he had a discussion with Mr. South regarding this and he's very concerned that many of the loans they make are in conjunction with banks and banks would be reluctant to participate in the loans if this law were passed;
(2) For those loans currently outstanding on businesses that are not meeting minimum wage, if they would have to call those loans in.

Another program that's operated through the Department of Commerce is the Health Facilities Authority with which I think many of you are familiar. It's a program that provides low interest loans to health facilities such as developmental disability group homes, a lot of the rural hospitals and some of our state institutions.

One of the problems is if the developmental disability group homes and some of the mental health group homes were required to pay a minimum wage, there would be a very significant fiscal impact on the state budget because the budget would have to be raised since the Department of Health and Human Services reimburses them.

The same is true in the nursing home industry because many of the loans made go to nursing homes; again, this is a sector where there are minimum wage jobs and if they had to pay the livable wage a substantial increase in the Medicaid budget would be required to offset those costs in the nursing home.

Mr. Blouke further stated is it's nice to have a livable wage and supports that; however, it's a very complicated and complex issue in terms of what are really the ramifications of doing this. The effects are not only in terms of creating jobs in a competitive environment (and the competition for a lot of these jobs aren't just within Montana but are intrastate and international) but are also in terms of maintaining a competitive edge or we won't have any jobs available to assist in the welfare reform.

{Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 4:35 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: SENATOR BENEDICT asked Peter Blouck if he was familiar with the acronym WEDGO?

Peter Blouck answered no.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said that acronym stands for Women's Economic Development Group out of Missoula and believes the Micro-Business Development program helps fund the loans for WEDGO.

Peter Blouck said that you have explained and refreshed my memory, he was somewhat familiar with that, not on a very technical level though.

SENATOR BENEDICT said his question is fairly simple. He thinks we tend to think the only ones that get tax breaks from the State of Montana are those big businesses. WEDGO, on the other hand, is an organization that helps displaced homemakers and helps women who would like to start their own small companies to be able to do that. He thinks they have made in excess of several hundred loans throughout Western Montana to women. Do you think this bill, even though it passes through from the MicroBusiness Development Corp. into WEDGO to help fund those loans, would impact and probably put a lot of those several hundred, small, two-or-three-person women's companies out of business.

Peter Blouck answered, he didn't think so because the threshold is \$25,000 or more per company. He thought the loans would be under that threshold. Referring to your corporate welfare going to big business, a lot of our economic development is in very marginal mental health facilities and developmental disabilities facilities; those are right on the margin.

SENATOR BENEDICT said SBIC has the ability to loan smaller amounts of money and the MicroBusiness Development Corp. contracts with SBIC and the threshold is \$25,000 or below, so some of these women have loans that are very small to help them start their companies. The way he reads this bill, that would severely impact the ability to see their companies survive.

Peter Blouck said as he understood the bill, the loan has to be greater than \$25,000 before the mandatory wage kicks in.

SENATOR EMERSON asked Tina Allison if she was talking about \$1,800 a month, which translates into about \$22,000 a year, and was she saying that she was living on that budget now?

Tina Allison answered she was, but was not self-sufficient on that budget. Until two months ago she was working at St. Patrick's Hospital and making a pretty decent wage. If she had been working someplace else like McDonald's at \$5.00 an hour, she wouldn't be making it. She gets assistance from AFDC, from FAIM, Missoula Housing, food stamps; without all of that she wouldn't be self-sufficient.

She stated she is sure she will be even after she receives her diploma because the best she can hope for right now is \$18,000 a year.

SEN. DALE MAHLUM asked SEN. BARTLETT if she had a loan from the SBA would that be affected with this?

SENATOR BARTLETT answered she thinks that would depend on whether it ran through state government at all. If it is one of the SBA programs operated with commercial lenders completely between the federal government and SBA and the lender and the recipient, it would not be affected at all.

SEN. BILL WILSON stated that Mr. Randash talked about how some way this bill discriminated between someone who was married and someone who was single. SEN. WILSON could not see something in relation to that and I thought the intent of this bill is not to. It's 150% of poverty level whether you have a family or not.

SENATOR BARTLETT stated for a proposal like this, obviously you have to establish some clearly identifiable level. I selected the 150% of poverty for a family of two as an indicator of what that level should be. It would apply to jobs regardless of whether the person who held the job had four children and a spouse or was single.

SENATOR BENEDICT asked **Terry Kendrick** if he worked for WEDGO? The goal or the vision of the organization is to help women get started in their businesses to provide the start-up financing. Is that correct?

Terry Kendrick answered they work with women and men who are starting or expanding their own business.

{Tape: 2; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 4:42 p.m.}

SEN. BENEDICT asked how many loans would you say are in that category?

Terry Kendrick answered he thought the vast majority of their loans fall in under \$25,000.

SENATOR BENEDICT said once you get those started, let's say that you gave them \$15,000 three years ago and they've finally gotten above that threshold where the \$25,000, but they've gone on to create more jobs and maybe they're a little larger now and they've applied for maybe a commercial loan blended with another state loan that's above maybe the \$25,000 threshold, how many would you say there are in that category?

Terry Kendrick responded he couldn't answer that question.

SENATOR BENEDICT asked if he would see a problem, though, with some of those businesses if there was blended state money with the commercial money, would it have a severe impact on those businesses if they all of a sudden had to jump to this livable wage in order to pay their employees?

Terry Kendrick answered he would say it is not out of the question, but there could be a problem there. What we see in terms of our borrowers, is the people we work with really want to pay a livable wage. That's actually part of the reason they say they want to produce a good product or service and they want to be able to pay really well.

SENATOR BENEDICT asked, but can they?

Terry Kendrick answered you have to ask yourself, can they pay off a substantial loan? They have to be able to be profitable. He would agree that it's possible there would be some friction there.

SENATOR MAHLUM said he was confused what this bill is strictly to do. If the State of Montana gives grants or loans or tax incentives to fledgling business, it has nothing to do with anything except what is granted by the state.

SENATOR BARTLETT said that is the intent. We have, I'm sure, all learned in one bill or another that words can be like a wet bar of soap and get a little bit slippery on you, I will tell you that is exactly the intent, it's limited to assistance that is provided through state channels from the state.

SENATOR MAHLUM asked if the county was to give you \$20,000 to start up a business, and the state had loaned the county some money through one of these grants, could this come back because they did got the money from the state originally and yet the county is giving it to the recipient?

SENATOR BARTLETT said she thought he dropped the bar of soap into the water. To her, when the state gives grants or money to the county, that is going to a county. If the county turns around and deals with a business, that is a separate transaction. She is not sure they have pinned that down exactly what the definitions in the bill are. She had wanted to limit this to state because when you get into counties, you have such diversity that it's just beyond dealing with in a reasonable fashion. She said she also wanted to limit it just to assistance provided by the state to a business.

CHAIRMAN KEATING asked SENATOR BARTLETT, regarding the tracking of some dollars, the legislature, in the last session increased the coal tax allowance to the small business program whereby the coal tax money could be used for loans for start-up of small enterprise businesses around the state. He thinks there's a couple million dollars in that fund and the loans run as high as \$100,000 for the start-up of the small businesses that have 10 to 15 employees. The program is run by the small business operators themselves. They have their own committee, their own board, and review the applications and so on. Those are tax dollars from the state to that group and they make those loans. If they borrowed this money for start-up because it is a very low interest loan and becomes public assistance because of the relief of the payment of that interest, and the tax money we're lending them is not receiving the same amount of interest it would receive otherwise for the benefit of the state, it appears under this bill they would be required to pay 150% of the poverty level of two people, which you said was \$7.40 an hour equal to \$15,000 a year.

SENATOR BARTLETT said that's 150% of the poverty level.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said under that scenario that would be public assistance and they would have to be paying \$7.40 an hour. Is that the case?

SENATOR BARTLETT answered yes, but it's \$7.47 an hour.

CHAIRMAN KEATING stated some of those businesses are competing with like businesses in the same area. The other businesses have gotten commercial loans and are not under public assistance and they're paying \$6.47 an hour instead of \$7.47. Wouldn't they be having an advantage over that start-up to small business that we're trying to get going to hire people to go to work?

SENATOR BARTLETT responded she believed that's exactly the point that Mr. Randash was trying to make in his testimony as well. She said there are two or three other ways of looking at this.

One is this is an effort to make the state, in the undertaking it has for economic development, focus on industries and businesses that pay higher wages and devote our energies to those; therefore, the wage level would not be out of line with the wages customarily paid in that industry, regardless of whether the business individually receives some public financial assistance or not.

Secondly, that would certainly become a factor a business person would take into consideration in determining what kind of final package they wanted to put together. The advantage is the lower interest rate with the state assistance but then there's a higher wage level requirement that might be enough to offset any gain the employer would be interested in; therefore, they would find it a better business decision to go with a commercial lending route, even though it might mean a higher interest rate.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said then there's another avenue of public assistance, JAFKA is federal funds that subsidize the payroll for the employer who hires an employee through the job service or through the JAFKA program. That's public assistance. Do you know if there is an average wage under the JAFKA program now that is somewhat higher than the minimum wage?

SENATOR BARTLETT stated there isn't any set requirement. She said they're geared toward attempting to work toward certain wage levels, but doesn't believe they have a requirement.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said under this bill, the JAFKA program in Montana would establish \$7.47 as a minimum wage for anybody who is in that program.

SENATOR BARTLETT said he was the first to have brought that particular program up. She is not convinced it falls within the intended concept of the bill; perhaps not even the wording we currently have in terms of what would constitute public financial

assistance but if it did, then that's an aspect she would want to be able to take into account and take a look at.

SENATOR MAHLUM. stated if a small business in Helena has been in business for 10 years and all of a sudden finds themselves in need of some money, they're going to get a loan somehow or another from the state. If they're currently paying their employees \$6.50 an hour, do they automatically raise to \$7.50 an hour when the loan comes through?

SENATOR BARTLETT. said they would have to receive a financial benefit of more than \$25,000. Yes, at the point assistance is received and the wage level to be paid would be \$7.47 an hour.

SENATOR MAHLUM. stated let's say you've got two people working and one gets \$6.50 an hour, one gets \$7.50 an hour. You're going to raise the \$6.50 to \$7.47 an hour but what are you going to do with the \$7.50 an hour? To be equitable, you should raise him up too, shouldn't you?

SENATOR BARTLETT. responded clearly, that is a decision the employer would have to make. She said those are aspects that should be taken into account in determining where I wanted to go for assistance.

{Tape: 2; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 4:57 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Closing by Sponsor: SENATOR BARTLETT. stated she appreciated the hearing and the concerns expressed by Dr. Blouck and the questions of the Committee. This is an area that needs to be looked at critically. It is not her intent to do damage to the efforts of the state to encourage business to but she would like to see us focus our efforts on industries and businesses which would customarily pay at a wage level where this proposal would not disrupt their standard business practices. One of the biggest safeguards, and it was written in precisely for things like the Micro-Business loans, the average of which generally runs about \$13,000 to \$14,000, was in fact the threshold of \$25,000 because of the need for some truly micro seed money to help an individual get over the hump and into a real chance at some commercial success, rather than sort of a off-my-kitchen table operation.

She pointed out the December, 1996, information on the wage levels for production workers excludes, not includes, supervisory or government payroll personnel. For the State of Montana the average hourly earnings in all industries in Montana was above \$7.47 an hour. She said that we're talking about an average, but that reinforced belief that the livable wage proposed in this bill is a reasonable one that can be met without disrupting the market place. The industry closest to it was retail trade which in December the average hourly earning was just about exactly at that level; however, they were \$7.47 an hour in Montana. She believes this is a legitimate effort to focus our work in the state on producing higher wage jobs for Montana. If there is a

need to make that clear in the language, she is willing to work on amendments which may need to occur, given the timing in the House Committee, but I would guarantee those amendments would be taken care of. She asked for favorable consideration of the bill.

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 353

Motion: SENATOR THOMAS MOVED TO TABLE SB 353.

Vote: Motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 325

Motion: SENATOR BENEDICT DO PASS ON SB 325.

Vote: Motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 290

Amendments: See (EXHIBIT 11 & EXHIBIT 12).

Motion: SENATE EMERSON MOVED DO PASS ON SB 290.

<u>Discussion</u>: CHAIRMAN KEATING stated the first amendment is a two-page amendment. In the lower right hand corner is the number 29005 and these are additions that are made. This is putting the regulation advisory council, it changes the percentage from 2.15% to 2.6%. That increases the assessment to increase the revenue to the Dept. of Labor the other new sections. He asked Ms.

Lenmark to explain the new sections. Jacqueline Lenmark stated all these amendments are consensus amendments.

The first new section, section #3, is the creation of a Workers' Compensation Regulation Advisory Council. That amendment was requested by the Department of Labor and the other proponents of the bill had no objections to it. This is to allow the creation of advisory council to further study the regulatory functions of the Dept. of Labor.

Section 4 is there only because of an effective date of coordination problem. If you look at your original bill, the intent of this bill is to have the old assessment method operate for the next biennium and then on July 1, we go to the new assessment method. There is a report by insurers that is necessary before that new July 1 date, and so to allow the sections to be correctly codified and to come into effect and be terminated in the appropriate sequence, it was necessary to create this one new section. It will have limited duration; as soon as the new system is in effect, this section will terminate.

Section 5 is simply the codification instruction for the advisory council, and it codifies that language not in the Workers'

Compensation Act. The remaining amendments are to clarify the sequence of the assessment transition. We're working from one method on one base to a different sort of base going to a calendar year. That's necessary to identify which years the old method applied to and which years the new method will apply to.

CHAIRMAN KEATING stated the second amendment is 29001 in the lower right hand corner. Section 1 deletes the assessment payment to the boiler inspection bureau to cover half the cost of that boiler section program. That money is coming out of administrative assessment, administrative fees under the assessment. That's not an appropriate fund for paying for the inspection of boilers and so we're adding into this bill the boiler inspection fees and setting the fees at a level that will fund the program appropriately. The fees are in statutes so there isn't any ruling or authority to change those fees at any time.

Motion: CHAIRMAN KEATING MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT SB029001.AEM (EXHIBIT 11).

Motion: CHAIRMAN KEATING MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT SB029005.AEM
(EXHIBIT 12).

SENATOR THOMAS asked CHAIRMAN KEATING, when was the last time these fees were changed?

CHAIRMAN KEATING responded the fees were not changed in the last session. This function was transferred from Labor to Commerce and it was agreed then that half of the cost would come out of this assessment and the fees would pick up the other half. He didn't think the fees were changed:

John Mahoney of the Safety Bureau of Labor stated when the boiler function was transferred to Commerce, they increased the fees. He thought they just, in the last session, imposed those fees for an inspection.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said the choice here is to make the Workers' Comp Insurance people pay for inspections for boilers or make the people with the boilers pay for the inspections themselves.

SENATOR BENEDICT stated the Plan 1's and Plan 2's can afford it.

CHAIRMAN KEATING responded that's a matter of opinion. At any rate we heard the budget in the Department of Commerce and they can't do the program on the fees that are there and if you want the boiler inspection program they're going to have charge the fees in order to run the program. It has to be covered one way or the other. He thought those who are benefiting from boiler inspections would be willing to pay the fees so they can operate their boiler. If you aren't licensed or don't have a licensed boiler inspector or if your boiler is not inspected periodically

you can't operate it, under the law. If you can't operate it you've got a cold school or cold hospital or cold someplace in the winter time so he believed they would pay \$26 or \$30 dollars an hour for a couple of hours in order to be able to operate their boiler.

SENATOR MAHLUM asked how many of these fees are going to be charged to one place? For instance, will they have an external inspection and an internal and a hot water heating supply and a steam heating and a power boiler all at the same time?

CHAIRMAN KEATING responded he couldn't answer that. If nobody is comfortable with this, we can just vote it down.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON THE AMENDMENTS CARRIED 5-4.

Motion/Vote: CHAIRMAN KEATING MOVED DO PASS SB 290 AS AMENDED. Motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

{Tape: 2; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 5:29 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 349

Amendments: See (EXHIBITS 13 & 14).

Motion: SENATOR EMERSON MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT SB034901.AEM
(EXHIBIT 13).

<u>Discussion</u>: SENATOR EMERSON stated in some of the other bills we've gone to three years for a license and so he thought this ought to match. He said we'll strike 1 year and put in 3 years, we'll strike annually and put in every 3 years.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said this section of the law has been changed by SB 45, so if SB 45 survives, this will get done; however, if it doesn't survive it won't get done.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON AMENDMENT SB034901.AEM CARRIED 8-1.

SENATOR THOMAS stated that a couple of these amendments [SB034908.AEM] can be segregated. He asked **Jim Hill** from the Department to explain the first two.

Jim Hill, Department of Labor explained the first amendment has to do with the conflict that exists when you share information out of our data base with insurers and the privacy issue. This amendment was created in an effort to specifically tell us what information we can share. That information is listed in this amendment as a result of our legal staff telling us this is the information we should be able to share with insurers. The last

part of the amendment has to do with the fact the insurer gets the information and must keep the information confidential.

The second amendment has to do with the report being created on an annual basis rather than biennial basis, as the original bill calls for. We've also asked that we add the section that says we may publish special reports. He thought the original law called for potentially quarterly reports, and asked that it be special reports.

SENATOR EMERSON asked if that is going to change the fiscal note?

Jim Hill responded no, it wouldn't. In particular the annual report is something that is for the most part automated at this point and would be relatively easy to create for the public. It wouldn't be substantially more.

Jacqueline Lenmark stated they do not have any objection to amendment number 1 if it could be amended to say the name and address of the insurance company or insurer and claim adjuster. The company insuring the claim is important information. The only thing added is insurer and claim after "the".

At the very end of the section, one of the disappointments of the insurers who have paid for this very expensive data base is they have not also had access to it for assistance in claims processing; therefore, they would like this information not isolated only to the prosecution of fraud but the use of the information gathered would also be for claims management or claims processing. They would like to see that language added at the end of amendment #1. If we're going to put all the parameters around it, we need to be clear it's not only prosecution of fraud but also investigation.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said for the investigation and prosecution of fraud.

Jacqueline Lenmark said she would also like the Committee to know the proponents of the bill, other than the Department, oppose amendment #2.

Motion: SENATOR FRED THOMAS MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT #1 AS IT WAS REDONE.

<u>Discussion</u>: SENATOR BARTLETT asked Ms. Lenmark, regarding the provisions in the Montana Constitution on individual privacy, do you think that there is a compelling state interest in releasing information for investigation and fraud in claims sufficient to overcome the right to individual privacy by a person whose record would be released for those purposes.

Jackie Lenmark responded in her legal opinion, this language is not necessary at all. It is being proposed out of the Department's concerns they are protected from improperly

releasing information. When an injured person puts their medical condition into issue in a legal matter (and that's what would be happening in a Workers' Compensation claim), and there would be an injury, they waive the privacy rights they have to their records about their medical condition. That's a rule of evidence that exists apart from the Workers Compensation Act, so I think this isn't necessary in any event; however, to protect the Department we are certainly willing to agree it's there in the statute.

SENATOR BARTLETT asked when they waive their rights, waive the protection of their medical records, aren't those medical records ordinarily drawn from somewhere besides a central data base that is operated by a state agency.

Jackie Lenmark answered not necessarily. Those records could be housed with a number of different entities. If that condition is in question, that privilege has been waived by the person who puts it in issue. If they don't put it in issue, the privilege is not waived. If it is an issue, the privilege is waived.

SENATOR BARTLETT said regarding the amendment, she supports the language to make it clear for the Department what they can do, and thinks Ms. Lenmark is correct in that the language may be unnecessary, but also thinks it's important, as a reminder to people, there is a balancing test agencies must do anytime they're dealing with this kind of information. She is uncomfortable with the use of that information for claims management or claims processing. She carried the bill in the Senate which REPRESENTATIVE CHASE HIBBARD sponsored in the House. That established the data base in the first place. That was never a reason for that data base to be established and regarding medical records, it seems to her preferable for insurers to go to the medical personnel or facility having those records or to the other insurer if it's a case of a subsequent injury to get information about the way the claim was handled. She strongly encouraged the insurers to use those sources and not to attempt to manipulate this data base into something it was not intended to be.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON AMENDMENT #1 CARRIED.

SENATOR THOMAS said if somebody else wants to move amendment 2, that's fine; however, he would like to move to amendments 3, 4 and 5 because he felt they fit together in dealing with that \$10,000. As the bill is written, everybody who missed their payment on their Workers' Compensation or lapsed coverage would be looking at a \$10,000 fine or more. Amendments 3, 4 and 5 restore the original language of the law and reverse this situation.

CHAIRMAN KEATING stated they are dealing with section 8. This is the uninsured employer section. He had a tendency to agree with SEN. THOMAS because in this section is where some unsuspecting homeowners have been trapped in the past. They have contracted with somebody to do something around their house or in their barn and as in the case of Carl Hafer from Butte who contracted with an electrician to rewire his barn, the guy fell off the ladder and ended up costing Mr. Hafer \$1,205,000 as an uninsured employer. That was one of those technicalities in that he spoke to the guy while he was working him, which all of a sudden established an employer/employee relationship. For the protection of some of those unsuspecting people, CHAIRMAN KEATING said he would like to hammer the contractor that goes bare, but doesn't want to catch some poor citizen in a real untenable situation.

SENATOR BENEDICT stated he could not agree more. He added that if SB 67 will allow the Department or the insurers to not accept or deny a claim within 30 days, and not need to have full penalty of that claim, maybe we ought to say it's an inadvertent thing. When the Department of Workers' Comp Division Plan 1's and Plan 2's say occasionally they might not accept or deny a claim within 30 days on an inadvertent basis, they shouldn't get hammered for that. The same thing should happen to a business. They shouldn't get hammered for doing something that was inadvertent.

Motion: SENATOR THOMAS MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENTS #3, #4, #5 OF AMENDMENTS SB034908.AEM.

<u>Discussion</u>: SENATOR BENEDICT said he heard the word discretionary and did not care whether it's discretionary or not, he did not want to put the power in the hands of the Department to levy a \$10,000 fine.

SENATOR BARTLETT said that's a perfectly valid point of view but we need to take into consideration the full range of situations that can occur. The example about the gentleman in Butte who thought he was dealing with an independent contractor and found out he wasn't, is a terrific argument for the independent contractor registration issues we have been dealing with. said she is a little uncomfortable with the level of the potential penalties in the bill as it was written, felt the original penalties are truly insignificant for someone who is purposely going without Workers' Compensation Insurance. Regarding testimony from the State Fund, their minimum premium right now is \$210 a year, so if you get a penalty of \$200, what kind of an incentive is that for you to take out Workers' Compensation Insurance? She asked if there isn't some middle ground, because the concerns raised are valid ones about the individuals, homeowners and people who through a variety of means truly have an inadvertent lapse in their coverage. That's valid, but there are people out there who are simply refusing to carry Workers' Compensation and take their chances and what we currently have is meaningless.

CHAIRMAN KEATING asked SEN. BARTLETT if she recalled that he had the repealer in last session to repeal the uninsured employed by

the plan on the grounds it's a safety net. There are contractors, the unscrupulous, who do this on purpose and rely on these payments. He wanted to get rid of this section altogether and let people be sued, let the employer who goes bare be sued then toward negligence or whatever other actions the claimant would want to take. He was still fearful for the number who are getting nailed under this uninsured employer thing because the language of the law allows the courts to determine that employer/employee relationship. The courts generally lean toward that employer/employee finding, and because of the meaning of the court he did not want to not hit some people who really don't deserve to be hit and can't afford to be hit. Those who go bare take their chances because even under the uninsured plan, they may not necessarily get exclusive remedy if they go there. can be sued for liability so there is an option by the claimant. He said he is going to vote for this amendment.

SENATOR BENEDICT stated he would also like to clear up something SENATOR BARTLETT said. That is the \$200.00, and the fact that maybe a minimum premium is \$200.00. He thought SEN. THOMAS wants to double the amount of premium that should have been paid, and if the premium should have been paid might have been \$700 or \$800 a year, that could amount to \$1400 if they had gone for a couple of years. So it's not that they're just going to a fine of \$200, because it's whichever is greater.

SENATOR THOMAS said this does apply to people who actually foul up

their payment too and fall out of coverage because they didn't keep their payment current. It could be a minimum of \$200 and \$210 but they didn't keep their coverage up so they're hit with a \$200 fine. They weren't really trying to go bare, they just goofed up so this deals with everybody, which is difficult.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON AMENDMENTS #3, #4, #5 CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

SENATOR THOMAS stated regarding amendment 6 on page 14, line 16, following "approve" it adds "or disapprove". It's meant to say "as it would be per the agreement is subject to Department approval or disapproval."

CHAIRMAN KEATING referred to the following sentence which says, "if the Department fails to approve the agreement in writing in 14 days, it is approved"??? He did not know how that all ties together.

Jacqueline Lenmark stated the proponents of this particular bill have no preference whether you use the term "approve" or "disapprove". The concern is the delay or time lapse at the Department waiting for some action. She stated they wouldn't oppose amendment #6, however, they would oppose amendment #7 which also relates to the same section.

They would prefer the term "working days" not be inserted but we use "days" as the most time limit in law, especially those that apply to legal proceedings, work on a set calendar day schedule and so for clarity and uniformity, we would prefer the days be calendar days, and it doesn't need to be specified. Without the addition of working days, it would mean calendar days.

Ms. Lenmark said they also strongly oppose the last line of amendment #7, with the insertion "of receipt of a properly completed agreement". Again, the problem they are trying to address is quick action on something that is already a matter of agreement, usually by two parties who are both represented by counsel. It shouldn't take an inordinate amount of time to process that agreement and it shouldn't require that kind of scrutiny.

SENATOR BARTLETT stated in the second half of that, she didn't see a difference between the language in the bill now, which the amendment proposes to strike, and the replacement language.

Ms. Lenmark stated to clarify the last two lines of #7, the problem they see is quibbling over whether an agreement is properly completed. The agreement is entered into by the claimant and typically represented by counsel, although not necessarily, and the insurer. If it is an agreement between the parties, that should be satisfactory, except in extraordinary circumstances. They want to avoid the haggling over whether an agreement is properly completed.

SENATOR BARTLETT stated if we simply use the words "of receipt of a completed agreement by the department", it seems it's possible that for whatever reason the whole agreement didn't get put in the mail and received by the Department or something, there is a point to be made about making sure that they have the complete agreement to look at and do a review on.

Jacqueline Lenmark said they wouldn't oppose that sort of an amendment.

SENATOR BENEDICT asked SENATOR THOMAS if amendment #6 and amendment #7 were Department of Labor amendments?

SENATOR THOMAS answered they were.

Motion/Vote: SEN. FRED THOMAS MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT #6. Motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Motion: SEN. SUE BARTLETT MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENT #2.

<u>Discussion</u>: SENATOR BARTLETT stated amendment #2 is the issue over whether a report is issued annually or biennially. She recalled from the testimony an annual report is also one REP. HIBBARD sponsored; however, the whole purpose of that data base was to put together information on the full range of Workers'

Compensation, i.e. identify things like the cost of drivers in the system to be used predominantly by policymakers, and potentially by insurers and to compare themselves to the other plans to see if their performance needed to be improved. The Department has indicated there is no fiscal impact on doing a report annually, that was the intent of the original legislation, and SEN. BARTLETT thinks it's worth remaining faithful to that original intent. There hasn't been anything in the meantime to suggest a change.

CHAIRMAN KEATING addressed the amendments. In speaking as sponsor of the bill, he would respectfully resist the amendment. The consensus group that put the bill together, made the draft on a study basis and their biennial report is sufficient for everybody's purposes. He realized this came from the Department for whatever reason, but doesn't want to change the bill at this time.

SENATOR BARTLETT pointed out there were no legislators on that working group and legislators were to be one of the predominant beneficiaries of the data base and the reporting.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON AMENDMENT #2 FAILED 4-5.

SENATOR BENEDICT he had one more amendment. It's a perceptual amendment, Page 7, striking lines 11 through 15. He had hoped SENATOR EMERSON'S amendment had addressed this, but this language is very inconsistent with the other independent contractor bills that are moving through the legislature. The fact they still call for the \$25 application fee, whereas this language allows the Department to set an amount sufficient to fully fund the cost of administering the program, which is like giving the Department a blank check. He suggested they strike 11 through 15, which would just allow current law to stay in place. We'll handle that in these other bills which are moving through on the independent contractors. Striking Subsection (b) allows it to remain the way it is in current law.

Jacqueline Lenmark suggested as an alternative, is a coordination section. You have a concern about writing a blank check to the Department. The problem is the insurers pay that blank check; the Department does not. Without some sort of limitation there, we are placing a burden upon our policyholders to fund other people who want to opt out of the system. That's not a fair thing to do to the employers who choose correctly to insure their employees. The problem is it's our policyholders who pay that blank check, and that's why we've suggested the fee be set so that exemption program be self-funding.

SENATOR BENEDICT asked Ms. Lenmark if she could you correct yourself? What her organization pays is in excess of the \$25.00, not the whole program. If they take in \$25.00 and it costs them \$35.00 to administer it, then they pay the extra \$10.00.

Jacqueline Lenmark said she spoke too broadly.

Motion/Vote: SEN. STEVE BENEDICT MOVED DO PASS TO RESTORE SUBSECTION (B) TO ITS ORIGINAL LANGUAGE. Motion CARRIED 6-3.

Vote: Motion DO PASS ON SB 349 AS AMENDED CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

{Tape: 2; Side: B; Approx. Time Count: 6:08 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 350

Amendments: See (EXHIBIT 15).

<u>Discussion</u>: CHAIRMAN KEATING said he had been approached from several angles. The bill has the right idea for re-arranging things. It may seem somewhat strict as to the Commission and it may not seem strict enough to some of the proponents, but he didn't know that this Committee had the time to rearrange this bill to suit everybody; however, there are a couple of things that might be done to make the bill less heavy-handed with regards to restrictions on actions of the Commission, but at the same time carry through the theme of helping the people who are involved in those Civil Rights complaints.

The one area which was recommended for amendment dealt with the rules of civil procedure as being too stringent, too complicated, too heavy for the work of the Commission in regards to mediating, investigating or working toward the settlement of the claims. It's been suggested we operate the contested case hearing under the Montana Human Rights Act as opposed to the Rules of Civil Procedure. If the committee were to agree, we could amend Section 9 of the bill to remove the Rules of Civil Procedure.

SEN. SUE BARTLETT said she heard such a variety of things from interested parties and was wondering about taking a moment to ask the three or four major interested parties to tell what they would like to see happen with this bill at this point.

CHAIRMAN KEATING said he would like to preface that request with his remarks from the principals involved. They have agreed the whole bill is very complicated and they do want to make changes. They are all interested in working towards a better bill for all sides. Also, if they want us to keep the bill alive, we can pass it in some form and then they can work on their amendments. When the hearing is in the House, they can mesh their ideas and "duke" it out over there.

David Owen, Montana Chamber of Commerce said they had a productive and good-faith meeting yesterday afternoon with the principals involved in this bill. They decided they needed more time to work on the language, get through the technical part and sort out the questions. Given the time constraints of the transmittal, it seems it would be best to make some immediate

changes, to pass it on over to the House and make a commitment to continue the process we had agreed to yesterday.

{Tape: 3; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 6:16 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

Ann McIntyre said she felt this is a complex bill from a procedural and remedial standpoint and it is very difficult to craft amendments to address the concerns of the proponents of the legislation and still come out with something which will work for the citizens. That has to be the real goal. She attempted to develop some amendments which were distributed at the hearing and found the bill essentially was so technically flawed, in my view, it was hard to put the amendments into that framework. They are committed to coming up with something that makes more sense.

CHAIRMAN KEATING asked if she felt somewhat assured the other people will work with you in all of this so if we do send it out, there will be collaboration?

Ann McIntyre answered, "yes".

Pat Haffey, Department of Labor said she thought they had identified the problem and where we're going to find the "fix". She would like the attorneys to take a look because of hearing about all the legal issues. She is committed to working with the group to make sure the bill is clean from a legalistic standpoint; however, from an administrative standpoint, she said she understands the message and is committed to being an active participant.

John Shontz, Montana Association of Realtors said he would like to echo what has been said regarding yesterday's meeting. There is one thought he said he wanted to share. That was if you are interested in the amendment, you might want to visit Section 4. Also, they set out a very ambitious work schedule for themselves which we all intend to keep.

Christine Kaufman, Human Rights Network asked that someone be there who represented the citizens of the state who face discrimination. She would be willing to do that.

Tom Hopgood, Lee Enterprises, Inc. said he didn't testify on this bill but did submit written comments. He said they have an abiding interest in one section of the bill and would like to enter into discussions with interested parties on this bill.

Dean Randash stated he would be in favor of what has been agreed to and would requested that he be included with those discussions.

SEN. DEBBIE SHEA said she would like to make a comment because she signed onto this bill. She thought they all need to do a lot of work with this Commission; however, wished this had started in the House and come over to be rectified.

Motion: SEN. STEVE BENEDICT MOVED DO PASS SB 350.

<u>Discussion</u>: SEN. SUE BARTLETT said she appreciated the good faith work by all parties and thinks it's pretty clear to everyone the form this bill is in will keep her from voting in favor of it.

Vote: MOTION TO PASS SB 350 PASSED 6-3.

{Tape: 3; Side: A; Approx. Time Count: 6:25 p.m.; Comments: N/A.}

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 375

Motion: SEN. FRED THOMAS MOVED DO PASS ON SB 375.

Motion: SEN. FRED THOMAS MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENTS SB037501.AEM (EXHIBIT 17).

Jacqueline Lenmark, American Insurance Association Discussion: explained the amendments are technical and are consensus amendments. Amendment #1 amends the title; #2 makes the definition of paid losses in this bill track precisely with the paid losses in the Administrative Assessment Bill; #3 is clerical to make the use of the term consistent; #4 is to impose a limit on the total amount that would be retained in this subsequent injury fund, which is to act as reimbursement to insurers; #5 is to make it clear in law what is happening for insurers is they are being reimbursed for payment; #6 takes out a subsection nearly everyone thought was incomprehensible and confusing; #7 changes a reporting date so it matches precisely with a reporting date contained in the Administrative Assessment Bill; #8 is the same explanation; #9 is grammatical; #10 corrects a typographical error; #11 deletes the emergency assessment again; #12 tracks with the amendment; #13 makes the dates consistent with the other bill; #14 makes the policy surcharge permissive rather than mandatory; #15 deletes a reference to the emergency assessment; #16 & #17 removes the debatable procedural portions of the bill; the law will remain as it is now and there will be no amendment; #18 deletes the first three subsections of new Section 9. section will not be codified; it is simply an instruction so the funds that are currently held in the Subsequent Injury Fund will be transferred to the Administrative Assessment Fund; #19 is the substantive language making that transfer; #20 concludes that transfer; #21 & #22 correct the codification and effective date sections for the renumbering that happened as a result of the deleted sections.

She wanted the committee to be very clear this sort of fund cannot create an unfunded liability. The insurers have to pay at the front of the process and then seek reimbursement from this fund; therefore, there will never be an unfunded liability in that sense. If an insurer did not pay benefits on a worker who was reimbursed, our respective guaranty funds would come into play and full benefits would be paid to the worker.

<u>Vote</u>: MOTION DO PASS ON AMENDMENTS SB037501.AEM CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Vote: MOTION DO PASS ON SB 375 AS AMENDED CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

EXECUTIVE ACTION ON SB 364

Motion: SEN. SUE BARTLETT MOVED DO PASS ON SB 364.

Motion/Vote: SEN. SUE BARTLETT MOVED DO PASS ON AMENDMENTS SB036401.AEM (EXHIBIT 16). Motion CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

<u>Discussion</u>: SEN. STEVE BENEDICT stated he would later offer a TABLE motion because it creates more problems than it solves in terms of its impact on small businesses around the state.

SEN. CASEY EMERSON said the idea isn't bad but the opposite side of it will cut back on jobs because regulations are being added, i.e. what you gain on one end you lose on the other.

SEN. SUE BARTLETT said she didn't think that it adds all that many regulations. There's validity in looking at the language and trying to make it work and I would like the opportunity to do that. She appreciated the committee's courtesy in allowing the proponents to testify in the hearing and I think the concept of the bill deserves the chance to stay alive and be worked on between here and the House Committee.

SEN. FRED THOMAS said he would vote against the bill. Europe has done a lot of this sort of thing and he would not want to be in Europe. They have a lot of benefits and built-in pay but a lot of unemployment and lack of opportunity. This one thing may send us down a track, which is not beneficial to Montanans.

SEN. DEBBIE SHEA stated she would like to speak on behalf of the bill because she thinks it is a very progressive and exciting piece of legislation. She thinks it would be a shame to interrupt and stop the wealth of ideas which could be added and thereby satisfy some of the concerns.

SEN. BILL WILSON asked if it would make any sense to ratchet up the \$25,000 limit so it would be more palatable to someone who was getting a huge amount of government assistance, rather than a small outfit?

SEN. BARTLETT she would certainly consider that, but would want a little time to think it over and talk to some people about the effects of that and what we might be able to screen out.

CHAIRMAN KEATING stated his uneasiness with this proposal was that the law of unintended consequences might be triggered. There are small fledgling outfits who are trying to get going, and the pay is going to have to be an agreement between the employer and employee. If the business goes, the employee should

SENATE LABOR & EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE February 20, 1997 Page 31 of 32

be rewarded, and usually is. His uneasiness is there is not enough definition at this time, and he is not willing to let it become law.

Substitute Motion: SEN. STEVE BENEDICT MOVED TO TABLE SB 364. Motion CARRIED 5-3, with SEN. JIM BURNETT excused.

ADJOURNMENT

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 6:42 p.m.

SEN. THOMAS F. KEATING, Chairman

GILDA CLANCY/ Secretary

TF/GC